
Children's Scrutiny Panel  
 
Dear Member, 
 
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Children's Scrutiny Panel to be held as 
follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
David Wilcock 
Monitoring Officer 

 
DATE: Wednesday, 14 July 2021 
 
TIME:  6.00 pm 
 
VENUE: 100 Embankment, Cathedral Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ. 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting.  

 
AGENDA 
 

 GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING FACE 
TO FACE COUNCIL MEETINGS FROM 7 MAY 2021 
Please see the attached guidance document on the arrangements for 
the return to face to face meetings. This guidance includes 
information about the venue, the control measures in place, COVID19 
lateral flow tests and travel options. 
 

(Pages 1 - 2) 

1   Apologies for Absence  
 

 

2   Declarations of interest  
 

 

3   Minutes of the previous meeting  
 
Minutes of the previous meeting held on 14th April 2021 for formal 
approval. 
 

(Pages 3 - 8) 

4   Salford's Education Recovery Plan Overview  
 
Report from the Assistant Director of Education and Skills (Cathy 
Starbuck).  
 

(Pages 9 - 22) 

5   Standing item - Update from members attending the Corporate 
Parenting Panel  
 
To include feedback from development day (review of CP) held on 8th 
July and the Local Government Association Corporate Parenting 
Forum, if available.   
 

 

6   The Work Programme and Membership  (Pages 23 - 26) 

Public Document Pack



 

 
7   Any Other business  

 
 

8   Date, time and business for next meeting  
 

 Wednesday 8th September 2021 at 6pm (5.30pm for members 
only pre-meeting). 

 Venue to be confirmed. 
 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2811 
Liz Wright E-Mail: liz.wright@salford.gov.uk 



The return to face to face council meetings from 7th May 2021 
 
The temporary regulations enabling remote meetings expired on 7 May 2021 and the 
Government now requires that we hold meetings of the full council, Cabinet, 
committees, panels and boards (that are open to the public) have to be held in public 
so members of the public can attend in person. 
 
A tremendous effort has gone into trying to ensure that any council meetings taking 
place in person will be held in a COVID-19 secure environment.  Your safety is our 
upmost priority, whilst also supporting transparency, accountability and effective 
decision making. 

The venue for face to face meetings 
All the formal council meetings from 5th July will take place at 100 Embankment 
Cathedral Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ, as this is the most appropriate, suitably sized 
venue available to the city council, where meetings can take place in a COVID-secure 
way.  

COVID-secure face to face meetings 
Listed below are some of the control measures that we have had to put in place at the 
meetings to minimise the risk of the transmission of the virus.  It is very important that 
all persons attending the meetings comply with the following.   
 
1. Please arrive at least 15 minutes before the start of the meeting to allow for 

controlled access to the building and meeting space. 
2. A marshal will be onsite to greet you and will escort you to the meeting. 
3. The meeting will be run in line with Government guidance, and using the principle 

of ‘hands, face and space’. Therefore, you are asked to regularly wash and sanitise 
your hands, wear a face covering at all times unless you hold a medical exemption, 
and please maintain a two metre distance from others at all times whilst in the 
building. 

4. Movement around the meeting spaces will be kept to an absolute minimum with 
pre-defined entrances and exits (the marshal onsite will cover this in more detail 
with you when you arrive). 

5. A vital element of our COVID-secure plans is that everyone attending should 
complete a COVID-19 lateral flow home tests three days before the meeting 
and on the morning of the meeting:  

 

• You can collect or order the home testing kits by: 
o Ordering a box of test kits to be delivered to your home 
o Collecting a box of test kits from a local collection point 

 

• If you test positive before or on the day you were meant to attend the meeting  
under no circumstances should you attend, please email your apologies to 
Democratic Services of your decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk 
 

• If your lateral flow test is positive you will then need to book a complementary 
PCR Test and follow national guidance on self-isolating.   

 
6. Despite all the COVID-secure measures we have put in place there remains a 

residual risk and coronavirus can make anyone seriously ill. For some of you the 
risk is higher, particularly if… 

• you are clinically extremely vulnerable or if they are at significant risk 

Page 1

Agenda Annex

https://www.gov.uk/order-coronavirus-rapid-lateral-flow-tests
https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/coronavirus/how-to-get-tested/book-a-free-rapid-coronavirus-test/
mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/get-coronavirus-test
https://www.gov.uk/get-coronavirus-test


• you have one or more health conditions as a number of risk factors may interact 

as well as health conditions. 
 

You may wish to take medical advice about your particular circumstances, if either 

of the above applies to you before you make a decision about attending face to 

face meetings.   

Travelling to 100 Embankment 

• By foot: A range of walking routes are available. 

• By train: Manchester Victoria Railway Station is a couple of minutes’ walk 
from 100 Embankment. 

• By car: Q-Park Deansgate North, 2 Chapel Street, Manchester, M3 7WJ, is 
located underneath the Embankment development. Parking can be pre-
booked on the website below. 

 
 Deansgate North Parking | Manchester Car Parks | Q-Park 

 
 

Page 2

https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgate-north/


Children’s Scrutiny Panel 14.04.21                                                                                                    1 
 

Children’s Scrutiny Panel 

14th April 2021 

Meeting commenced: 6.00pm 

Meeting ended: 7:30pm 

 

Present:  

Councillor Brocklehurst (in the chair) 

 

Councillors:  

Joshua Brooks, Jillian Collinson, Laura Edwards, Ari Leitner, Lewis Nelson, Mike Pevitt, Neil 

Reynolds, Madeline Wade, Joan Walsh, Collette Weir, Ronnie Wilson. 

 

Co-opted Members: 

Dr Keith Archer, Jacqui Morrissey, Judith Elderkin. 

 

Officers: 

Tim Rumley – Senior Youth Work Manager 

Cathy Starbuck – Assistant Director Education and Skills 

Rebekah Tucker – Head of the Looked after Children’s Service 

Liz Wright – Democratic Services (Clerk) 

Members of the public: 

 Two 

 Streamed as an audio meeting via Microsoft Team via Watch Live Council Meetings page on 

the city council website. 

A minutes silence was observed in memory of His Royal Highness The Prince Philip, Duke 

of Edinburgh. 

1. Apologies for Absence 

Apologies were received from Judith Elderkin. The Chair requested that the clerk sent a 

message of best wishes to Judith Elderkin. 

2. Declarations of interest 

There were no declarations of interest.  

3. The Chairman’s Statement 2020/21 

As it was the last meeting of the municipal year and several members would be leaving the  

panel, the Chair took the opportunity to say a few words. He thanked Councillor Judith Collinson 

and Councillor Ronnie Wilson for their years of service, where they have used their extensive 

knowledge and expertise to make invaluable contributions to the work of the panel.  Special 

mention was given to Councillor Collison’s work on the Corporate Parenting Panel.  Councillor 

Wilson and Councillor Collison were especially thanked for their impact on the strengthening of 

city council policies.  Councillor Edwards was thanked her as one of the newer members of the 

panel who was retiring from the council at the forthcoming election, particularly for her work 

helping with the transition from the previous committee to the new approach to scrutiny on the 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3

https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/watch-live-council-meetings/


Children’s Scrutiny Panel 14.04.21                                                                                                    2 
 

panel and her commitment to research and policy formation alongside the officers of the 

council. The Chair thanked them personally and on behalf of the panel and wished them well for 

the future. 

The Chair also thanked all the panel members for their hard work and support during the year, 

as it was the last meeting before the elections.  

 
4. GCSEs, testing and assessment 2021 

The Assistant Director (AD) for Education, Work and Skills (Cathy Starbuck) introduced the 
briefing note and highlighted the following. 

 The Government announced on 26 February 2021 how schools should award teacher 
assessment grades for Year 11 and Year 13 students in schools. Members were directed to 
the details online at 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_da
ta/file/965005/6747-1_decisions_-_GQ_consultation_on_awarding_grades_in_2021.pdf 

 One of the significant changes would be that results day would be earlier with A Level 
results on 10th August and GCSEs on 12th August. 

 Schools had been given comprehensive advice on how to manage the teacher assessment 
and schools were only waiting for the exemplar exam questions to use, which would be 
made available after the Easter holidays and the guidance would be complete.  

 Ofqual would randomly sample assessments and school’s testing and assessments policies 
as part of their quality assurance and will help with consistency across schools.  

 The guidance also stated that schools needed to be as transparent and clear with parents 
as possible in terms of what evidence was being considered for each subject.  There also 
needed to be clarity for parents on how well their children were achieving via ongoing 
feedback but schools could not tell them what final grades was being submitted for their 
child and also because grades could be moderated up or down.  

 Parents and children could appeal via the school and the schools would double check 
grades before submitting them to the exam boards for further consideration and checking. 

 There would be no algorithm used this year but there would be the quality assurance 
process. 

 Schools were working together in Salford and across their Multi-Academy Trusts (MATs) as 
appropriate to ensure consistency.  Schools were confident that they had robust plans in 
place. 

 
The Chair invited questions and comments from members. 

 A member commented that last year student and families approached local councillors and 
MPs and many students had lobbied the Government expressing their concerns at what’s 
was seen as an unfair system but the arrangements in place for this year seemed much 
better and fairer.  

 A member commented that they hoped the Government would take the time to review how 
young people were assessed and examined and take the opportunity to move away from a 
one day opportunity to test their learning.  Judgements based solely on exams impacted 
negatively on students and on staff in schools and colleagues. 

 
The Chair thanked the AD for Education, Work and Skills (Cathy Starbuck) for the report. 

 
Resolved:  That, the members noted the report. 

5. Salford Youth Service: Coping with Covid 

Page 4

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/965005/6747-1_decisions_-_GQ_consultation_on_awarding_grades_in_2021.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/965005/6747-1_decisions_-_GQ_consultation_on_awarding_grades_in_2021.pdf


Children’s Scrutiny Panel 14.04.21                                                                                                    3 
 

The Senior Youth Work Manager (Tim Rumley) gave the presentation and highlighted the 

following. 

 The presentation covered the following: 
o The Salford context. 
o Salford Youth Service and Local Authority (LA) led offer. 
o The Youth Service and where it sits in the LA. 
o VCSE, Onside and National Citizen Service. 
o Outcomes and measures. 
o Projects and developments. 
o Changes to the offer over COVID. 
o How COVID affected local communities. 
o Remote and digital youth work. 
o Observations and the digital offer. 
o Reflections. 
o The future. 

 The Youth Services was part of a research project by the Local Government Association 
(LGA)in 2020 and it identified Salford at one end of a spectrum of how youth service 
provision was delivered and alongside Leeds and Hertfordshire were delivered/led by the LA 
where as others were delivered by community and voluntary services. 

  Salford Youth Service (SYS) had 66 members of staff, 40 of whom were part-time.  During 
the pandemic the service was seeing between 500 and 700young people on a weekly basis. 

 The offer from SYS was via youth centres (but these had been closed down during the 
pandemic), a digital youth service offer, detached youth workers working with young people 
in the community (in the parks and on the streets), an outdoor education programme 
(including the Duke of Edinburgh Awards Scheme) and a targeted one to one service linking 
with social care service. 

 Groups were run on a weekly basis such as a young women’s group, an LGBTQ+ group 
and a young men’s mental health group. 

 The service supports the participation in the Youth Council, the Youth Mayor and the 
member of the Youth parliament. 

 Specialist projects included the Youth Crime Prevention Project, the Resilience Building 
Project and the Anti-Bullying Project. 

 The Youth Service was positioned in the LA in Children’s Services under Early Help.  Its 
positioning in the LA meant it was easy for the service to work with its partners such as the 
NHS and the VSCE.  Th service worked closely with young people to design the offer. 

 A lot of neighbouring LAs had youth hubs run by Onside and Salford Youth Service had 
looked at this as a possibility for the city but the geography of the city would make it difficult 
to site such a hub in one area of the city. 

 Salford Foundation delivered the National Citizen Service in Salford and links with this 
service were growing. 

 There were hundreds of voluntary sector provider services in Salford, many uniformed and 
some non-uniformed organisations based in the centre of the city near to Manchester city 
centre. 

 The assessments scales were explained and how case closures were reviewed and learning 
developed from their outcomes. 

 Some current projects and developments were explained such as: 
o The resilience project in primary schools that was an initiative focused on prevention. 
o Salford was one of the only areas in the country to focus on young fathers and have a 

worker to support this. 
o A mental health drop in had been developed in Irlam and Cadishead and this was 

developed from young people asking for this support and through local charities. 

Page 5



Children’s Scrutiny Panel 14.04.21                                                                                                    4 
 

o A successful Youth Crime Prevention Project focusing on 10-12 year olds to stop them 
getting into a life of crime, had been run jointly with the Youth Offending Service for over 
two years.     

o The Youth Service led the input from young people into the design of Route 29 and the 
neglect strategy. 

o Work was ongoing with Public Health to develop a project around risk taking behaviours 
and four young people with be employed on the project.   

o Young people were working to inform the technology deployed in the Gateways via the 
Young people’s Tech Committee. 

 The Youth Centres had been closed during Covid, except for work with small groups, and 
would not fully reopen until, all restrictions were lifted (expected on 21st June).  Youth 
workers had continued to work all through the lockdowns and found innovative ways to stay 
engaged with young people, such as walking their dogs with them and cycling with them. A 
bike repair project in the parks had proved to be particularly successful. 

 School holiday programmes had continued in the parks. 

 A lot of the work this year had focused on food poverty. At Christmas the youth workers 
themselves got food parcels together for the young people as they were really concerned 
about the levels of food poverty for the young people they were working with. 

 The Digital youth work offer developed very quickly during the pandemic with many 
innovative ideas being developed such as online gaming clubs, talent shows and nerd club 
for those interested in comics/magazines, cooking sessions and book groups.  Digital 
fatigue was an issue and the structured sessions were more popular.  

 The detached youth work continued throughout the whole pandemic.  Workers went out in 
partnership with the Police and resilience forums to identify where young people were and 
to get positive Covid messages to those young people. 

 16-25 age group was the most difficult group to engage with and particular concerns around 
schooling and exams and opportunities.  This included supporting families who did not have 
access to digital equipment and broadband for home schooling. 

 Support was provided to a number of young people suffering bereavement during Covid.   

 The service had been able to engage a lot during the year with the Jewish community and 
youth workers were being trained from the community to support their young people. 

 The staff had been extremely resilient with a minimum amount of absence. 

 Young people have missed the space just for young people to meet up and foresee 
difficulties for some young people getting out of the house when things open up again. 

 The future plans were explained including the Covid recovery, work on last year’s Make 
your mark priorities, the risky behaviours project, Black lives matter, the Youth Partnership 
and continued work on the digital offer. 

 
The Chair invited questions and comments from members. 

 A member asked where the youth centres were located and it was confirmed they were at: 
Charlestown Beacon Centre, Bridgewater, The Deas Centre at Moorside High, Broughton 
Youth Club at the Hub, Cadishead Hall, Oasis Academy and the community centre in 
Winton.  

 A member asked if the young people were aware of everything that was on offer and could 
they be assured that the message was getting out.  It was reported that the offer was 
promoted on digital media and through the digital offer and word of mouth was very effective 
but once the Covid restrictions had been lifted the Youth Service would visit Year 6 pupils in 
schools to promote the services. 

 A member commented it was very good to see that the detached youth workers continued 
their work throughout the pandemic. 

 A member asked about the numbers of young people using the services and their ages.  It 
was difficult to provide this at the moment as the range of use was different during Covid, for 

Page 6



Children’s Scrutiny Panel 14.04.21                                                                                                    5 
 

example 500 – 700 young people had used the services every week but at this moment that 
had not been broken down into how many where new to using the service.  The target age 
range was 10-19 years. 

 A member asked about disability groups.  The service worked with two local charities who 
have use of the Youth Service centres. 

 A member commented that it was very good to know so much was going on but was 
concerned that some areas were not as well served as others. It was explained that young 
people attended the centres from across the whole city. 

 A member asked about the gender split of young people attending youth services.  It was 
reported that the centres and detached work were more male dominated usually (60% to 
40%).  This had been recognised and three young women’s groups were set up across the 
city and encourage more young women from these groups to attend the centres. 

 A member was concerned that the Cadishead Youth Centre was not big enough and there 
was a concern that the young people were not being listened to in terms of what they 
wanted. It was explained that any youth centre that was not developing its offer by listening 
to young people was not doing its job properly.  Cadishead Youth Centre was small and it 
was being looked into to see if different age groups at different times.  The Senior Youth 
Work Manager would look into the specific issues raised by the member. 

 A member commented that they felt that the Youth Service should eb a statutory service but 
was pleased that Salford had an LA led service and was working well with partners and local 
community groups and charities and was facilitating others service providers to deliver the 
services they were best positioned to deliver.   

 A member commented on the transformative effect the youth service had had on their life. 

 A member commented on how their own children had benefitted from and enjoyed the 
holiday programmes and thanked everyone involved. 

  

6. Minutes of the previous meeting 

Resolved: That, the minutes of the meeting held on 10.03.20 were approved as a correct 

record. 

7. Matters arising from the minutes 

There were no matters arising. 

8. Training and Development  

The members discussed the training needs for the panel and agreed the following areas were 

required and requested: 

 The role and work for the scrutiny panel. 

 The work and priorities of Children’s Services 

 The Corporate Parenting Panel.   

9. Work Programme and Membership  

a. Membership 

 The Clerk confirmed that the nomination of Alex Klein as a Jewish Representative would be 

put to Council for approval.  

 There were still vacancies for a free church representative and a representative from the 

Roman Catholic Diocese and the clerk had contacted the RC Diocese for an update on 

where they were in terms of appointing a representative.  

Page 7



Children’s Scrutiny Panel 14.04.21                                                                                                    6 
 

b. Work programme 

 A member asked about the voting and non-voting status of some members as outlined on 

the work programme and the clerk would clarify this for the next meeting.  

Resolved:  That, the panel requested the following training and development for the new 

municipal year: 

 The role and work for the scrutiny panel (for new and experienced members). 

 The work and priorities of Children’s Services 

 The Corporate Parenting Panel.   

 

7. Any Other business (AOB) 

a. Return to face to face meetings 
The Government had not extended the regulations for council meetings to be held online 

and so meetings were having to be held face to face again from 7th May 2021.  Work was 

ongoing to put all the appropriate Covid safe arrangements in place and further information 

would be provided nearer the time for the next meeting. 

 

8. Date, time and business for next meeting 

Wednesday 9th June 2021 at 6pm (5:30pm briefing for members). 

Page 8



 1 

 Part 1 - Open to the Public 
 

ITEM NO. 

 

 
 

REPORT OF REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR, PEOPLE 

 
 

TO CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY 
 

ON 14TH JULY 2021

 
 
TITLE: Salford’s Education Recovery Plan Overview 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: That the members of scrutiny note this report  

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: An overview of the provision across primary and secondary 
schools and settings is provided in this report. Actions to support education recovery 
are constantly under review by leaders.  

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  
PRIMARY AND SECONDARY OVERVIEW OF CATCH UP – 13th January 2021 
Education Strategy  

 
 
KEY DECISION: No  

 
 
DETAILS: 
All primary schools and secondary schools, including PRUS and special schools   have 
had to close one or more bubbles in response to positive cases within the school 
community (children and staff) since the start of the pandemic and this disruption has 
been ongoing this term leading to further disruption to schools and their students due 
to the high rate of COVID-19 currently in the city. Leaders have reduced the impact of 
this by keeping bubbles as small as possible.  
 
Most schools have had multiple bubble closures, sometimes of the same groups of 
pupils. Many schools are dealing with high levels of COVID related staff absence at 
the present time, in a small number of schools this has led to bubble closures. The 
attached Education recovery plan has been developed in partnership with school 
leaders and practitioners from other agencies. This action plan, along with school’s 
individual action plans, will be kept under regular review next academic year as the 
impact of COVID on pupils’ education continues to be more fully understood. 
 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 2 

Curriculum Offer 
Most schools have now returned to a full curriculum offer whilst making some 
adaptations to the order and content of the curriculum in response to gaps in pupils’ 
learning and to COVID-19 restrictions. For example, some elements of the PE 
curriculum that require close contact and/or sharing equipment are not being taught at 
present. In subjects where practical resources are needed, schools have had to adapt 
their curriculum sequences to use these in a Covid secure manner. In the main, 
children are now confident to access the curriculum remotely and schools have 
broadened their offer for pupils when they are required to learn from home.  
 
Schools are prioritising key skills and finding time within the timetable to address these 
whilst still having a broad curriculum offer by for example embedding the use of core 
English skills within foundation subjects’ lessons.  

 
In some schools some aspects of Music, Computing and PE have not been taught as 
yet, due to Covid safety requirements, and these will need to be addressed in the 
course of the catch-up strategy.  
 
Some leaders have explained how time to teach is more limited because of the need 
to regularly wash hands etc.   
 
How are schools planning to ‘close the gaps’?  
Schools have been given additional funding to address catch-up needs. In terms of 
catch up premium funding announced in June 20, this was made up of £650 million 
allocated for this academic year, smaller primaries received around £13 000 and larger 
primaries have received around £40,000. In addition, there has been further funding 
announced but amounts are not yet confirmed. Current information states that an 
average primary school will receive an additional £6,000 and an average secondary 
school will receive £22,000 to support summer school provision.  
 
Most recently, further funding has been announced to support tuition though the school 
level allocations have not yet been announced but will be based on the number of pupil 
premium students. A typical primary school will receive £6000 and a typical secondary 
school will receive £35 000. This payment is ring-fenced to fund tutoring provision that 
can be locally sourced by schools. 
 
School leaders in secondary schools have met with primary teachers to discuss the 
new Year 7 cohort to identify any issues related to post pandemic catch-up with 
individual pupils. Pupils who are vulnerable and need additional support have been 
identified. Most secondary schools are providing summer schools for Year 6 pupils.  
 
 
Leaders have made plans for this catch up but recognise it will need to be developed 
and refined overtime as pupils’ needs manifest themselves. These plans will have been 
published on school websites and shared with governors.  
 
Schools are planning to use the additional funding in a variety of ways: 

 Funding 1-1 and small group tutoring delivered by in-school staff rather than 
external providers. 

Page 10



 3 

 Funding of external 1-1 tuition via approved external providers such as the Tutor 
Trust or Teach First.  

 Purchasing licences for remote learning platforms 

 Supporting classes with additional staffing 

 Purchase of additional resources e.g., continued provision resources to support 
EY approaches in Year 1 

 Purchasing additional IT devices and software to be used both in school and at 
home 

 Purchasing Speech and language resources & language resources including 
the Nuffield Education Language Intervention.  

 Funding staff training for interventions 

 Funding to support improvements in pupil attendance  

 Funding to support behaviour strategies, including providing support for 
emotional needs. 

 Provision of breakfast clubs 

 Provision of therapeutic interventions  

 Funding for extracurricular activities and cultural activities 
 
 
Attendance: 
Attendance data has been tracked and monitored throughout the academic year by 
school type and vulnerable cohorts from the following sources: 

 DfE portal ‘Covid 19 Response Monitoring’: comparative Salford v GM v. 
England data.  (N.B. Data is based on the returns made by schools therefore 
gives a good indication of overall % attendance but is only a proxy measure.) 

 PowerBI:  a dashboard created to gather attendance data direct from school 
systems on a weekly basis and based on numbers of children expected to 
attend i.e. Not X codes (N.B. The values for this reason are often higher than 
the DFE portal data as pupils who are absent from school due to COVID related 
reasons are not expected to attend and are given an X code in the register) 

 

All schools - Average % children attending   
Term National 

Average 
Salford 

DFE 
returns 

Salford 
PowerBI  

GM data 

Autumn 1 85.8% 82.4% 92.9% 83.1% 

Autumn 2 83.9% 83.0% 94.0% 84.0% 

Spring 1 14.4% 18.4% 78.5% 19.2% 

Spring 2  64.7% 64.7% 90.0% 59.2% 

Summer 1 90.9% 89.4% 92.8% 90.9% 
 

Primary - Average % of children attending   
Term National 

average 
Salford 
DFE 
returns 

Salford 
PowerBI  

GM data 

Autumn 1 85.8% 82.4% 93.2% 83.7% 

Autumn 2 87.8% 85.9% 95.5% 87.0% 

Spring 1 21.4% 24.5% 87.8% 25.6% 

Page 11



 4 

Spring 2  71.0% 68.9% 93.8% 63.0% 

Summer 1 93.7% 92.6% 94.9% 93.1% 

     
 

Secondary - Average % children attending 

Term National 
Average 

Salford 
DFE 

returns 

Salford 
PowerBI 

GM data 

Autumn 1 84.6% 77.1% 90.3% 79.3% 

Autumn 2 79.7% 76.4% 91.3% 80.0% 

Spring 1 4.5% 8.0% 56.8% 7.9% 

Spring 2 56.2% 58.0% 82.3% 51.9% 

Summer 1 87.5% 84.2% 89.9% 87.6% 
 
In response to attendance concerns related to COVID-19 the Education Welfare 
Service has: 

 Undertaken a full review to re-define and focus on key priorities for the service. 

 Created effective data systems to provide weekly attendance reports for all 
schools with a focus on tracking vulnerable groups of children.  

 Established up a series of triangulation meetings and strategies to target 
vulnerable groups which has resulted in increased attendance e.g. CP/CIN 
cohort. 

 Developed a multi-agency approach, including communication with all 
children’s services across the authority to promote the importance of 
attendance, subsequently sharing accountability and responsibility. 

 Implemented new pathways to support attendance e.g. Emotionally Based 
School Avoidance and an Enforcement pathway with a shorter time frame for 
prosecution.  

 Provided links and resources to support children and parents to reduce their 
anxiety about returning to school post COVID. 

 Worked with schools to identify children who have not returned post lockdown 
and implemented support strategies such as: 

o Communication support - letters/telephone calls/ emails/home visits 
o Referral and/or signposting to other professionals/services e.g. Early 

Help Assessment, EBSA, School Nurse 
o Attendance Panel Meeting 
o Medical Planning meeting (including School Nurse/other HC 

professional) 
o Stages to prosecution (only where there is evidence of historical 

attendance concerns) 
o Referral to Education on Track (multi-agency panel for children at risk of 

educational neglect) 
 
Many schools have reported having attendance that is similar to, or higher than, this 
time last year, notwithstanding Covid related absence. Leaders attribute this to the 
work that they have done to build families’ trust during the national lockdowns, and 
their continued efforts to inform and reassure parents about the arrangements they 
have in place to keep pupils safe in school.  
This has included:  

Page 12



 5 

 Regular clear communication including sharing risk assessments,  

 Video tours and explanations shared before children returned in September 

 Supportive and responsive attendance policies e.g. keeping possible EHE 
pupils on roll during the autumn term 

 Multi agency working e.g. EWOs 

 Staggered or more flexible starts and finishes.  

 Senior leaders being visible on the yard each morning and afternoon to reassure 
parents  

 Welfare calls made to all families before pupils returned, these have continued 
this term when pupils are required to learn from home. 

 Counselling services 

 Safe environments including signage, hand sanitisers etc. 
 
How schools are meeting the challenge of continuing to provide home learning 
as needed? 
All schools are providing remote learning to pupils who are self-isolating, their 
approaches have developed over time. Training has been provided to primary and 
secondary teacher and leaders; schools have access to the EdTech Demonstrator 
website which contains self-learning resources to ensure staff are confident in using IT 
platforms. Approaches to this vary considerably from school to school. Leaders have 
made decisions about the design of their home learning offer to best meet the needs 
of the community they serve.  Most primary and secondary schools are using digital 
platforms and resources (e.g. Teams, Google Classroom, SeeSaw, Class DoJo, Loom, 
Zoom and Tapestry).  
 
All schools have systems in place to have regular contact with pupils that are learning 
from home through phone calls and/or chat and feedback features within digital 
platforms. Where their chosen technology allows, schools are developing their 
capabilities in offering direct feedback to pupils about the work they have submitted. In 
many schools leaders and class teachers are providing bespoke home learning offers 
to families finding it difficult to access learning online. Teachers are finding ways to 
tailor home learning to the individual needs of pupils. 
 
Schools are becoming increasingly skilled at teaching remotely when a whole bubble 
of children are learning from home and robust systems are in place, however it is more 
challenging when individual pupils or small groups are learning from home whilst 
maintaining a reasonable workload expectation for teachers.  
 
How are Local Authority services supporting schools in this work?  
A few examples of LA support are outlined below: 
The Ethnic Minority and Traveller Achievement Service (EMTAS) continues to provide 
a full offer to schools by supporting their international new arrival children, including 
asylum seekers/refugees and Gypsy Roma Traveller children. The team deliver weekly 
social distanced intervention lessons to improve English acquisition and/or basic 
literacy. Where pupils are isolating, EMTAS continues to support schools with 3 way 
interpreting phone calls to families, carry out welfare checks, help families with no 
English to access FSM vouchers, create English language remote learning packs, and 
deliver digital online English language lessons. Home school liaison continues on all 
the Traveller sites in the City to maximise pupil attendance, encourage vaccination 
take-up and reduce community anxieties. 

Page 13



 6 

 
The Virtual School is providing advice and support via the PEP (Personal Education 
Plan) process. The Teacher Advisors are prioritising their attendance PEP meetings to 
ensure that Looked After children’s education plans include clear targets around 
catching up on any lost learning. We have also given additional funding to schools from 
the Pupil Premium Grant for use as an ‘Educational Recovery Grant’ for individual 
pupils. The impact of this will be reported on via the PEP review process. 
 
A dedicated staff member within the Pupil Inclusion Team (PIT) is in place to support 
transition for children who are known to PIT and those children at Alder Brook. Their 
caseload this year has been 64 pupils. Other agencies are now sign posting schools 
to PIT for additional support with transition and referring pupils directly E.g. youth 
service, Virtual School Team, Education Welfare Service.  
 
The Learning Support Service provides specialist advice to schools about identification 
of and supporting a wide range of SEN including autism, sensory, physical, and 
cognitive needs. The implementation of SEND Thrive – a new graduated approach to 
SEN provides a wealth of strategies and interventions for schools to call upon to get 
the right support in place at the right time.  
 
Summer Holiday Activities: 
These schemes will run for 4 hours per day, Mon-Thurs from the 26th July to the 19th 
August. There will be a whole programme of different organisations delivering the 
schemes including Primary and Secondary schools, Salford Community Leisure, 
Foundation 92, Salford Red Devils and some other local providers (to be confirmed 
following an application process).  The schemes will take place in schools, community 
centres, youth centres, leisure centres and in outdoor spaces.  Each scheme must 
provide a minimum of 1 hour per day of physical activity, 1 hour per day of an 
enrichment activity, a nutritional education session and a nutritionally balanced meal.  
We also plan to provide families with a weekly box to take home containing a recipe 
and ingredients for a family meal. 
 
Further information on the partnership Education Recovery is detailed in the action 

plan attached which will be reviewed on a multi-agency basis with schools leaders on 

at least a half termly basis. 

 
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  The Great Eight A fairer, greener and healthier Salford 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 
 

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Medium  
Due to the significant impact on education in Salford schools, minimising the impact 
on pupil’s education recovery is a high priority. 

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

Page 14

https://www.salford.gov.uk/children-and-families/school-holiday-activities/summer-fun/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/your-council/council-and-decision-making/how-the-council-is-performing/our-priorities-the-great-eight/


 7 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: CATHY STARBUCK  

 
 
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: All 
 
 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



EDUCATIONAL RECOVERY 
 

VISION: T0 ENABLE EDUCATIONAL RECOVERY FOR CYP PARTICULARLY THOSE MOST DISADANTAGED 

 
 

 Challenge         Priorities Measurable Outcomes Key Actions 

 
 

 

SUPPORTING YOUNG 
PEOPLE TO ENGAGE 
FULLY IN EDUCATION 
EG WHERE THERE ARE 
ANXIETY ISSUES,   
FITNESS CONCERNS 
 
SUPPORTING SCHOOL 
STAFF  

 

• Numbers of FSM CYP engaging 
in Healthy Holidays scheme 
during the summer 

• Attendance figures   
• CYPMH service data -

referrals/engagement/outcomes 
• Thrive referral & engagement 

data 
• SDQs/other wellbeing measures 
 

 

Thrive 
 Thrive in Education: dedicated mental health team support for schools, 1-2-1 and group 

interventions for children, consultation, whole school development and training. Designated 
Mental Health Leads training and Thrive in Education peer support network. Developing and 
testing a Thrive EHWB Peer Support training programme with High schools (pupils aged 14+), 
piloting ‘Physical Activity on Prescription’ offer for primary and secondary aged children with 
mild-moderate mental health needs. 

 Children’s and young’s people mental health and wellbeing services: CAMHS, 42nd street, ICRS, 
online counselling, KOOTH, Gaddum Bereavement Counselling, Drama workshops in all high 
schools. See Thrive webpages and directory for full details of the offer Salford Thrive 

 
Emotionally Friendly Schools 

 Rollout of whole school approach to wellbeing (traded offer for schools not Thrive in Ed 
Identified schools) 

 Conference 
 Website 

 
School sports partnership- Dean Gilmore 

 Provide school events to promote physical activity.  

 Provide resources and CPD to ensure that school PE activities both in and outside of school are 
of high quality. 

 Continue collaboration with Thrive and EFS to ensure inclusion of physical activity and fitness 
within the frameworks. 

 Parents 

 
Attendance 

 EWS/Inclusion Team/Virtual School Team have overview of children who have not returned to 
school: those who are stuck abroad, those who have otherwise yet returned post lockdown, and 
those who have started to be EHE.  Data analysis, monitoring and triage system in place to apply 
the most appropriate pathway to support return to school. 
Pathways include:  

o Emotionally based School Avoidance:  Supporting schools and families to engage with 
materials and workshops and ensuring understanding and access to the pathway. 

o New shortened Enforcement Pathway for those who had existing poor attendance. 
 

Long Covid clinics in place to deal with symptoms such as fatigue which can impact on attendance. 

 
Healthy Holidays 

 Ensure Healthy Holiday Scheme in place across all areas of the city and engagement is good 
across all age groups. 

 
Well-being Return Roll Out of training/ Drops and resources. (Schools and colleges) 

 Materials Available on the Emotionally Friendly Schools Website 
 Continued roll out of training in line with government funding. 

 

IMPACT ON 

EMOTIONAL 

AND 

PHYSICAL 

WELLBEING 

P
age 17

http://www.partnersinsalford.org/salford-0-25-advisory-board/salford-thrive-ehwb/emotional-health-service-directory/


Headteacher Peer Supervision Workshop and pairing 
 Annual training and reflection headteachers have the opportunity to sign up to annually (first 

opportunity March 2021 well received by small numbers of headteachers 
 
Staff wellbeing 

 Access to wellbeing support via Intranet and direct for schools HR 
 
Critical Incident Support 

 Continued access to Critical Incident Support to schools and settings following any tragic event. 
 
Post 16 mental health support  

 Developed, and gaps addressed, including discussion around the timing of the transfer into adult 
services. 

 
Schools of Sanctuary- EMTAS  

 An accredited programme to help schools understand and identify the needs of their asylum 
seeking and refugee children. The programme has a strong focus on the emotional health and 
wellbeing of these children and the need to address these for full engagement. 

 
Outreach Support for Gypsy Roma and Traveller communities-EMTAS 

 Home-school liaison on Salford Traveller sites and with housed Travellers to address anxieties 
and school avoidance at the earliest opportunity.  

 
RHS Garden 

 Free school access to the wellbeing garden, woodland play and den building areas 
 Free Salford residents access every Tuesday 

 
  

 

SUPPORTING 
PARTICIPATION TO A 
NEW SETTING  
 
SUPPORTING LEARNING 
GAPS AS CYP MOVE TO 
NEW SETTINGS  

• NEET figures 
• Unemployment data (18-24 year 

olds) 
• Attendance 
• FTEX/PEX/RTT 
• EHCP data 
• Outcomes at the end the key 

stage 
• Take up of NELI 

 

 

 EYFS transition guide adhered to: information shared regarding vulnerabilities, transition activities 
and visits meet needs. All proformas updated to reflect reformed EYFS. 

 LA working group meet regularly to focus on reducing exclusion/ reduced timetables in EYFS and 
put in place actions to improve inclusive practice. ASENCOs developing clearer expectations for 
settings and schools in terms of their support for transitions  

 WellComm project continuing beyond its initial funded period to support SLCN and school 
readiness. 

 NELI- Nuffield intervention taken up by majority of reception classes across the city as an 
intervention to reduce the language gap. 

 KS2-3 Transition policy adhered to: information shared regarding vulnerabilities, transition activities 
and visits meet needs. Policy to be developed to include curriculum information sharing. 

 Primary Inclusion Support group support transition for children with repeat fix term exclusions and 
extended reduced timetables (RTT). Secondary inclusion support group to be established. 

 Some primary and secondary schools engaging with ASCL 6 to 7 programme to transfer attainment 
information. 

 
Post 16 Transition 
The Skills & Work team have an overview of all the risk of NEET year 11 leavers and have developed a 
range of summer programmes to support their engagement and ‘keep warm’ activities.  Connexions are 
offering additional support to young people in schools where there is no summer adviser in place.  We 
are also asking schools to make referrals into ESF NEET contract, who can offer 1-1 support over summer 
and beyond.   
 
We are also working with all secondary schools to implement the KS4/5 Transition policy and it is 
adhered to including: 
 information sharing and curriculum meetings planned for middle leaders. 
 Information sharing between schools/LA/College to support risk of NEETs 

 Schools to encourage young people to attend universal transition activities with post 16 providers. 

CYP MORE 

VULNERABLE  

DUE TO 

TRANSITIONS  

P
age 18



 Schools/LA/Support services – provide signposting details for post 16 provision and support across 
the city through #FindMyFuture webpages and related comms,  

 Engage Year 11 leavers (risk of NEETs) in summer programmes to 'keep warm' ready for September. 
 
NEET/16-18 
We are looking at how we can strengthen the data sharing between post 16 providers and Connexions 
to ensure more timely follow up of completers and withdrawn young people.  We are also looking at 
the frequency of follow up for risk of NEETs, even when in positive destinations.   Other areas of focus 
are: 
 Developing a sustainable model for the supported apprenticeship programme seeking a legacy from 

December 2021. This will support young people with additional needs to move into a wider range 
of post-16 pathways. 

 Continuing to develop the Build Salford model to create training and employment opportunities, 
especially for those hardest to reach.  This needs greater connectivity to Place directorate including 
procurement and social value commitments.  Part of ‘build back better’ recovery plan.  

 Continuing the Connexions service to support NEET (16 and 17-year olds) young people back into 
compliant post 16 destinations. 

 Consider how the council can influence external and internal funding to develop support for 
‘Hidden’ NEET young people (18-24-year olds) who are unemployed and not claiming Universal 
Credit.  This is a current gap. 

 
Post 18/Unemployment 
 We are starting to develop a Youth Hub model which includes virtual events for parents/carers as 

well as face to face support for young people within community and outreach locations. There will 
be five #FindMyFuture hubs across each gateway centre, which will include a core set of services 
which support young people. Drop-ins will be offered as well as appointments. This will provide an 
opportunity for greater access to support. 

 Kickstart opportunities are being offered across the city council and other local employers.  We 
need to look at the communication of these to reach more young people who need the 
opportunities the most.   

 Supporting schools to have appropriate and unique approaches to recovery. 
 Support for International New Arrival (INAs) children who are new to the City and need support 

with settling into a new school. Focus of support is on developing English proficiency to maximise 
participation- EMTAS  

 

 

 
 

ACADEMIC 
NON-ACADEMIC 

 

• Pupil outcomes in 2021/22 

• RBA data 

• Ofsted Outcomes  
• Number of summer schools in 

place 
 

 

 
Quality First teaching still at the heart of it 
 School leaders are supported to develop an effective recovery curriculum through quality assurance 

visits and training opportunities e.g., digital strategy CPD and other tailored support. 
 Links are made with partners across the city e.g., Lowry Theatre/Stage Directions 
 SENCO networks supported by LSS to focus on improving outcomes for SEN Support & EHCPs 
 Timely multi-agency reviews of all EHCPs 
 Access to neuro-developmental pathway  
 Schools to identify and close learning and skills gaps through ongoing assessment for learning, 

quality first teaching and high-quality intervention where appropriate.  
 Plans in place in all schools to return to a broad and balanced curriculum including SRE and a focus 

on reading and literacy development.   
 Schools supported to review their phonics provision considering the new accreditation/criteria. 

Revisiting the approach.  
 Schools supported to review and refresh their EYFS provision and practice in line with EYFS reforms 

and new statutory guidance. 
 Ensure adequate access to relevant CPD. 
 DfE funded summer schools in secondary schools  
 Timely access to alternative provision is provided and is appropriate to meet the individual needs 

of the child.  The provision is quality assured and monitored to ensure the best outcomes.   

DELIVERING AN 

EFFECTIVE 

CURRICULUM  

P
age 19



 EMTAS support to ensure English as an additional Language best practice is adopted throughout 
the school 

 Series of training sessions on the reformed EYFS have been delivered to schools. 100% attendance 
on the briefings and high attendance on other sessions, including Child Development and practical 
planning sessions. The reforms have been put into place to narrow the school readiness gap and 
improve outcomes in Communication and Language.  

 
Libraries and Museums to support schools 

 Summer Reading Challenge will go ahead focused on reading for pleasure and encouraging 
children to explore the breadth and diversity of literature available to them. 

 Salford Museum & Art Gallery and Ordsall Hall offer opportunities to fill the cultural experience 
gap and bring children back in to amazing, inspiring spaces in their local area.  Contact the 
Learning Team (learningbookings@scll.co.uk) to discuss a visit. 

 Families will be able to visit for free and there will be programmes of activities during the 
summer and October half term holidays. 

 The Museums Learning team is developing a range of things to support teachers: new art-based 
sessions at the museum; a programme of free CPD which will happen over the next two years; 
new ‘Discovery Boxes’ which will include activities and museum objects for use in the classroom 
and a new website with a range of free resources to support classroom learning. Join the mailing 
list by emailing learningbookings@scll.co.uk to be informed when all these launch. 

School to consider how Cultural capital-/trips and visitors and also physical activity feeds into the 
curriculum moving forward 
 
RHS Bridgewater 

 Free guided school workshops which are curriculum linked, teach horticultural skills and have a 
wellbeing focus. 

 Free self- led access for all schools for field work, science, maths, art etc.  

 Travel Bursaries to cover the cost of coaches for schools with high proportions of pupils eligible 
for FSM 

 

  

ENSURING TEAM 
AROUND THE SCHOOL 
APPROACH IS AS 
EFFECTIVE AS POSSIBLE 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 Schools are aware of where to 
get support – single point of 
contact is in place 

 School are empowered to 
meet the needs of the most 
vulnerable – data/case 
studies/school feedback 

 

 Inclusion Strategy development work has identified that elements of the Team around the School 
model are in place and working, but an overarching plan and single point of access needs to be 
established. 

 A new post to co-ordinate this work has been created and will be in place by June 2021, sitting 
under Early Help but working across agencies. 

 Consultation with school's plan in place 

 EHWB directory- Thrive- support for schools to be improved. 

 Review the current model within the Early Help Service, in consultation with schools, staff within 
the Early Help Service, other Children’s Services and wider stakeholders.  

 Develop a ‘Team Around a School’ model that can be shared with schools and partners to clearly 

articulate the offer available.   

 Full review of the existing offer to schools, how schools access the support, and the effectiveness 
of the support offered e.g., neurodevelopmental pathway, support from Early Help, Operation 
Encompass Support.  

 Alignment of the model with other key strategies and delivery models, such as Thrive IN 
Education/Emotional Health and Wellbeing Strategy, Neurodevelopment Pathway and Salford 
SEND Thrive Graduated Response 

 Consultation with schools and relevant partners, to develop a co designed model of support for 
schools. 

 Pathways that school access to be used as indicators of need to support the Team around the 

School Development. 

IMPACT ON 

VULNERABLE 

FAMILIES 

P
age 20

mailto:learningbookings@scll.co.uk
mailto:learningbookings@scll.co.uk


 

 

 

  

COMMUNICATION WITH 
STAKEHOLDERS 

 

 
 
 
 

 The plan is shared with school 
leaders, including governors, 
Lead Member and Executive 
Support for Education, LA 
Teams and partners 

 

 The Educational Recovery plan is consulted upon and shared through communications with school 
leaders and governors (directors report?) 

 Ensure parents are informed – multiple languages 

 Publish on Salford website and social media 

 Post on SIAS Face Book. Make reference to the plan at the Parent Assembly 

 Upload to the Local Offer webpage  
 School websites direct parents to the strategy 

 Ensure plan is reviewed regularly to deal with emerging issues 

 Parent Assembly - SEN 

 

AWARENESS 

OF  

STAKEHOLDERS 

OF LONG-

TERM 

STRATEGY 

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Children’s Scrutiny Panel  
Work Programme and Recommendations 2021-22 

 

 

SCHEDULE OF COMMITTEE DATES & AGENDA ITEMS 
 

Date Topic/Action 
 

Responsible officer (s) 

14 April 2021  GCSEs, testing and assessment 2021 – an update on the requirements for 
schools and how schools are approaching this.  
 

Cathy Starbuck 

9 June 2021  Business planning/Work programme development 

 The GM agenda and how this affects the Children’s Services. 

Charlotte Ramsden 
Strategic Director - People 
 

14 July 2021  Children’s Dental Health 

 Education Recovery Update 

 Business and work programme planning 

 Standard item:  Corporate Parenting meeting feedback from member(s) in 
attendance – Feedback from development day (review of CP) held on 8th 
July and the LGA CP Forum.   
 

 
Cathy Starbuck 
 

8 September 2021  Budget monitoring (quarterly item) 

 Standard item:  Corporate Parenting meeting feedback from member(s) in 
attendance. 

 

 

13 October 2021  Childhood obesity strategy update  

 Standard item:  Corporate Parenting meeting feedback from member(s) in 
attendance. 
 

Debbie Blackburn 

10 November 2021  Standard item:  Corporate Parenting meeting feedback from member(s) in 
attendance. 

 

 

8 December 2021  Budget monitoring (quarterly item) 

 Standard item:  Corporate Parenting meeting feedback from member(s) in 
attendance. 

 

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 6



                                     

Last updated 23.06.21 2 

12 January 2022  Standard item:  Corporate Parenting meeting feedback from member(s) in 
attendance. 

 

 

9 February 2022  Childhood Obesity data update 

 Standard item:  Corporate Parenting meeting feedback from member(s) in 
attendance. 
 

Debbie Blackburn 

9 March 2022  Service Group Budgets 

 Standard item:  Corporate Parenting meeting feedback from member(s) in 
attendance. 
 

 

13 April 2022  Standard item:  Corporate Parenting meeting feedback from member(s) in 
attendance. 
 

 

Regular monitoring reports  

 Service Group Budgets (quarterly - Chris Mee/Dave Cope) 

 Updates from the Corporate Parenting Board (12 monthly – Rebekah Tucker?) 

 Service Group priorities (annually)  

 School Performance Data (annually - Cathy Starbuck) 

 

                                                         Topics in abeyance  

Children’s Dental Health  

Children’s Obesity  

The GM agenda and how this affects the CS  

Reviews 
 

 

Accessing Children’s and Young People’s Mental Health Services (deferred) Councillor Edwards 

Review of Route 29   

 
RECOMMENDATIONS TRACKER 

Title of Report  Date of submissions and responses Responsible Lead Member/officer 

   

P
age 24



                                     

Last updated 23.06.21 3 

 
Portfolio of the Board: 

 

Membership – 12 Members (10 Lab 2 Con) 
 Children in Need 

 Integrated Looked after Children 

 Early Intervention 

 Children’s Safeguarding 

 Integrated Youth Support including Youth Offender Service 

 Complex Needs Inclusion 

 Complex Needs SEN 

 School Provider Arm 

 Starting Life Well 

 Transforming Learning 

 Skills and Work 

 Primary School Place Planning programmes 

 Partnerships and Commissioning (including the Children and Young 
People’s Trust) 

 To scrutinise the council’s business plan and budget in this functional 
area. 

1. Cllr A Brocklehurst (Chair) 
2. Cllr J Brooks 
3. Councillor K Garrido 
4. Councillor A Leitner 
5. Cllr L Nelson 
6. Cllr N Reynolds 
7. Cllr Robinson-Smith 
8. Cllr Rowland 
9. Cllr M Wade 
10. Cllr R Walker 
11. Cllr Joan Walsh (Vice Chair) 
12. Cllr C Weir 

 

Voting representatives: 

 One Church of England Diocesan 
representative – Dr Keith Archer 

 One Roman Catholic Diocesan 
representative – vacant 

 One representative from the Free 
Churches – vacant 

 One representative from the 
Jewish faith – Alex Klein 

 Two parent-governor 
representatives - Yolanda Amana 
Ghola 

 
Co-opted Members – non voting  
Ms Jacqui Morrissey 
Mrs Judith Elderkin 

 
Lead member: Councillor Jim Cammell (Exec Support Cllr John Walsh)  
Key Officers: Charlotte Ramsden, Cathy Starbuck, Zoe Fearon, Debbie 
Blackburn, Beck Bibby)  

 

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING FACE TO FACE COUNCIL MEETINGS FROM 7 MAY 2021
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Salford's Education Recovery Plan Overview
	Education Recovery Plan - MASTER

	6 The Work Programme and Membership

